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How FAR WE HAVE Co1E ! 
From thu days of the ''Town Cryer," to our pr~ni modem 

civilization is the span of time being celebrated in Cheltenham 
Village. 

This little spot in Cheltenham has played. an important pm 
in the making of a great Nation. In this same spot 250 YEARS 
AGO our forefathers had no one to show them the way. . These 
early settlers depended upon trlbnl guides for barter system 
trading. 

Upon the solid foundation of this pioneer spirit ha.'1 developed 
a prosperous interesting community whc10 people are glad to 
live and work to enjoy the privileges the foundation of which 
were made possible by these early An1ericans. 

Cheltenham Township also celebrates its 40TH ANNIVER• 
SARY. And, we are glad to pay tribute to the men behind the 
wheels of progress in Cheltenham Township. 

Today too, the Bank is the hub of the Community, In these 
days of change and d·cstmction we ·are proud to feel that relia• 
bility and solidity which is so truly an expression of our banking 
Institutions - SYMBOLS OF OUR DEMOCRACY - In the 
AMERICAN WAY. Men connected with this Institution of bank­
ing are your neighbors, your tax payers. They arc now a part 
of the tradition of Cheltenham Township. By tho uso you make 
of this Bank you help the progress of CHELTENHAM. 

Today the capable business man and citizen depends upon 
the Bank for guidance-may we serve you? 

STANLEY E. CRAIG, Preddl1nt. 

ELKINS PARK NATIONAL BANK 
ELKINS PARK, PA. 





Cheltenhani Tow11ship's 40th Anniversary of Incorporation 

'"f HIS PROGRAM has been prepared and published to serve as 
a· souvenir of this occasion. For a community to observe its two 
hundred and fiftieth anniversary of its founding is not an every 
day occurrence and is deserving of a celebration such as has 
been arranged for this event. 

The history of almost every successful community reveals a 
story of early struggle-sometimes against great odds, by the 
abiding faith on the part of its founders. It is the purpose of these 
histories of the various communities that go to make up our great 
township to show these facts, and pay respect to those early 
settlers who laid the ground work for the fine community in 
which we live. 

As this prcgram goes to press, the committee has endeavored 
to Incorporate In it all the details complete at this time, and to 
list all organizations who have signified their intentions to take 
part in the parade. 

The committee extends thanks to all who have assisted in this 
c3lebration and In particular, the advertisers by whose generosity 
this program has been made possible. We urge for them 
your patronage. 

August 31, 1940 

HAROLD C. PIKE, General Chairman 

FRANK C. FISHER, Secretary 

HAROLD S. ASHWORTH, Treasurer 
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Cheltenham Township's 40th Anniversary of Incorporation 

CHELTENHAM TOWNSHIP ANNIVERSARY 
COMMITTEE 
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Cheltenham, Village 250th Anniversary Celebration 

PROGRAM 
SUNDAY, SEPrEMBER 8th 

HOME COMING DAY 
As an appropriate and inspiring opening of the week's 

celebration, Home Coming Day will be observed in all 
the churches in the township on Sunday, September 8. 

Reverend Philip J. Steinmetz of St. Paul's Episcopal 
Church, Elkins Park is serving as chairman with the 
following churches cooperating:-

Cheltenham Methodist Church . . .. . . . .. .. . .. .. Rev. Eugene Harshberger 
Presentation B.V.M., Cheltenham ........................ Rev. H. T. McFall 
St. Aidan's Episcopal Church, Cheltenham, Rev. Herbert B. Satcher 
First Church of Christ Scientist, Elkins Park ...... Mrs. John Hoffner 
Pilgrim Lutheran Church, Cheltenham .... Rev. Theodore A. Fischer 
St. James' Catholic Church, Elkins Vark ....... Rev. John T. Morton 
Cheltenham Friends' Meeting .............................. Francis R. Taylor 
Lamott Methodist Church ................................. Rev. William Gullins 
Carmel Presbyterian Church, Edge Hill ......... Rev. Howard J. Bell 
Ashbourne Presbyterian Church ......... Rev. George Barnes Edgar 
First Baptist Church of Glenside-Wyncote, Rev. Evarts C. Conover 
All Hallows Church, Wyncote ....................... Rev. Thomas Burgess 
Glenside Methodist Church .............................. Rev. Elias B. Baker 
Calvary Presbyterian Church, Wyncote . . . . .. Rev. H. Lewis Cutler 
St. Luke's R. C. Church, Glenside ............... Rev. J. 0. Patterson 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEI\riBER llth-6.3.0 
DEDICATION OF MELROSE PARK 

PLAYGROUND 
Parade formation on Asbury Ave.--cuttlng of ribbon into park 

by Miss Anne Catherine Bryan. 
Dedication of Playground. 
Invocation by Rev. Geo. Barnes Edgar--Ashbourne Presbyterian 

Church. 
Address and presentation by Mayor Robert E. Lamberton. 
A(;(;eptan,-:e by Col. Fred Jasperson-Me]rose Park Commissioner. 
Band Concert by Cheltenham Township Ban<l under direction 

of Clair Hower. 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 12th 
Declared Cheltenham Township Anniversary Day in all Schools 

of the Township and appropriate exercises held in each 
School. 
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Cheltenham Towmhip's 40th Anniversary of Incorporation 

SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 14th-11 A. M. 
Dedication of Cheltenham Art Center, Ashbourne Road, West of 

Rowland A venue. 
Cutting of ribbon by Bettimae Wagner of 314 MyrtJe Avenue, 

Cheltenham. 
Address by Charles D. Conklin, Jr., Pres. Board Commissioners. 
Acceptance by Committee. 

GRAND PARADE 2 P. M. 
COMMAND GROUP 

Chief Marshal ~ • • Captain J. R. Dey 
POLICE ESCORT-

Two U.S.A. Motorcycles. 
MOUNTED ESCORTS-

M. G. Troop 104th Cavalry. 
GRAND MARSHAL-Harold C. Pike. 

Commissioners of Cheltenham Township. 
Cars with Distinguished Guests and Reviewing Officers. 

MOUNTED ESCORTS-M. G. Troop 104th Cavalry. 

FIRST DIVISION 
Marshal • • • Commander A. K. Barlow 

"Uncle Sam"-William McCann. 
Color Guard, Post No. 497-Forsytha.Oldham-Griffith. 
Sons of the American Legion, No. 211 Brass Band. 
Post No. 497, American Legion, Forsythe-Oldham-Griffith. 
A. K. Street Post No. 411, Bugle and Drum Corps. 
Troop No. 2, Cheltenham, Boy Scouts oi America. 
Cheltenham Township Band. 
Heller Public School. 
Rowland Public School. 
Capt. Slowe Post V.F.W., Bugle and Drum Corps. 
Presentation B. V.M. School. 
Rising Sun Post No. 2819, Veterans of Foreign Wars, Jr. Bugle 

and Drum Corps. 
Troop 382, Boy Scouts of America. 
Ashbourne No. I SSS Emil No. 255. 
North Penn Post No. 676, V.F.W. Bugle and Drum Corps. 
North Penn Post No. 676, V.F.W. 
North Penn Post No. 676, V.F.W. Auxiliary. 
Penn Treaty Cadets' Bugle and Drum Corps. 
Yeoman's F. Post No. 50, American Legion. 
Tr:lop No. 226 Boy Scouts of America Bugle and Drum Corps. 
Cheltenham Girl Scouts. 
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Cheltenham Village 250th Anniversary Celebration 

SECOND DIVISION 

Marshal - - - Captain J. G. Pickard 
Colors. 
Northern Liberties Boys and Girls, Fife, Drum and Bugle Corps. 
Happy Hour Men's Bible Cla~s, Cheltenham Methodist Church. 
Hatboro High School Band. 
Glen~~de Public School. 
Wyncote Public School. 
Oxley Post Bugle and Drum Corps. 
Troop 251 Boy Scouts of America. 
Herbert W arrimbr Post No. 70 Bugle and Dru'n Corps. 
Ladies' Circle of the Cheltenham Methodist Church. 
Thomas A. Connor Girls' Bugle Corps. 
Betsy Ross Lodge No. 1588. 
Doylestown High School Band. 
Hawltt-Hausler Post No. 184 V.F.W. 
Camp No. 345 P. 0. S. of A. Bugle and Drum Corps. 
Captains Allyn-Capron Post No. 22 V.F.W. Girls' Drill Corps. 
West Oak Lane Jr. Bugle and Drum Corps. 
Private Morton Glandon Post No. 298 V.F.W. 
Lt. Wm. G. Junkin Post V.F.W. Bugle and Drum Corps. 

THIRD DIVISION 

Marshal - - - Commander R. Hammerle 
Colors. 
Corp. Loudenslager Post No. 366, Sons of the Legion Band. 
Holly Briggs Post No. 2168 Veterans of Foreign Wars. 
Liberty Post No. 308, American Legion, Bugle and Drum Corps. 
Liberty Post No. 308, American Legion. 
Upper Moreland High School Band. 
Shoemaker Public School. 
St. James Parochial School. 
Troop 160, Boy Scouts of America. 
Moore Triplett Post No. 451, Bugle and Drum Corps. 
Moore Triplett Post No. 451, American Legion. 
Moore Triplett Post Auxiliary. 
Edge Hlll Troop No. 2, Boy Scouts of America. 
Olney Troop 203, Boy Scouts of America Bugle & Drum Corps. 
Glenside Troop No. 1, -Boy Scouts of America. 
Arthur U. Savage Post No. 100, American Legion. 
Wyncote Troop No. I, Boy Scouts of America. 
Elmwood Cadets Bugle and Drum Corps. 
Glenslde Troop No. 2, Boy Scouts of America. 
Coates-Jordan Post, American Legion. 
Wm. B. Dixon Jr., Drum and Bugle Corps. 
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Cheltenham Township's 40th Anniversary of Incorporation 

Montgomery County 
Norristown, Pa. 

FREDERICK C. PF1TERS 

FOSTER C. HILLEGAS RAYMOND K. MENSCH 

County Com.missioners 

JOHN E. MARSHALL EARL B. BECHTEL 

Recorder of Deeds Prothonotary 

MARY H. BEERER FRANK B. K. BARKER 

Treasurer Controller 

WINSLOW J. RUSHONG 

Coroner 

-
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Cheltenham Village 250th Anniversary Celebration 

FOURTH DIVISION 

Marshal - - - Lieut. Sam Street 
Colors. 
Olney High Schooi &ind. 
Floats-

Arrival of Penn. Shovel Mill Fire. 
First Grist Mill. First Catholic Church. 
Rowland Shovel Works. First Episcopal Church. 
Founding of the School. First friends Meeting. 
Stage Coach. First Lutheran Church. 
First Post Office c.;,~d General Store. Needlework Guild. 
Harvey's Blacksmith Shop. American Legion IS Auxiliary. 
First Methodist Church Service. W. C. T. U. 

Cheltenham Art Center. 
Early '::heltenham Charters and Customs-

Milkmuri. 
Medicine Man. 

Eliza Larkins 

Abington High School Band. 
Abington Fire Company. 
Cheltenham High School Band. 

Butcher Wagon. 
Itinerant Peddler. 

Ogontz, Elkins Park and Glenside Fire Companie.'.l. 
Betsy Ross Bugle and Drum Corp. 
Cheltenham Fire Company. 
Frankford Post No. 211 American Legion, Renior Brass Band. 
Pearl of the West Stables-Organizations. 

ROUTE OF PARADE 

East on Jenkintown Road lo Ashbourne Road. South on Ashbourne Road . lo 
Boyer Read. East on Boyer Road lo Rowland A venue. North on Rowland A venue 
to Ashbourne Road. East on Ashbourne Road to Ryers A venue. North on Rye rs 
Avenue lo Jefferson Avenue. West on Jefferson Avenue to Central Avenuo. South 
on Central A venue to Tookany Park Entrance. Pass reviewing stand and mass 
Band's colors and units on Tookany Parle field. 

FIELD PROGRAM 

America . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Miss Joan Messner 
Invocation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Rev. Eugene Harshberger 
Selection -"The Thunderer" . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Bands 
Vocal SelecUon-"God Bless America" . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Miss Marjorie Conklin 
Patriotic Address . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ......... Hon. J. Wm. Diller 
Vocal Selecllon-"Memorles" . . . . . . . . . . .................. Miss Marjorie Conklin 
Selecllon--Star Spangled Banner .............................. Bands and Vocal 
Prizes 

Benediction-Rev. Henry McFall 
7 P. M.--Field drill. Maneuvers ar,d firing exhibition. Machine Gun Troop 104th 

Cavalry. 
7.45 P. M.-Band concert by Cheltenham Township Band. North Perin Posl Bugle & 

Drum Corps and Vlsltlng Units. 
8.30 P. M.-Magnlflcenl Fire Works Display. 
IO P. M.-Dance-Melrose Country Club. 

At the conclusion of the events of the day the Machine Gun Troop of the 
I04th Cavalry will camp for the night on Tookany Drive where an opportunity wlll 
be given anyone who desires to vfsll the camp to vfew the outfit as they would 
appear In active service. The troop wfll break camp at noon Sunda1, September 15. 
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Cheltenham Township's 40th Anniversary of Incorporation 

PIONEERS • • • 

We pay tribute to those early Pioneers who had the 

courage and forbearance to settle and develop our country 

... Pioneers who built such communities as Cheltenham! 

We like to think of our organization as "pioneering" in 

another field ... the field of printing and newspaper service 

to this community. We look forwt1rd to growing with and 

serving Cheltenham Townshir 

BLAETZ BROTHERS, INC. 
Printers and Puulishers 

PUBLISHERS OF THE BREEZE NEWSPAPERS 
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Cheltenham, Village 250th Anniversary Cel~bration 

(MILLTOWN) 

By FRANK C. FISHER and FRANCIS R. TAYLOR 

FoREWORn 

In preparing a histonJ of any place or section covering a period of 
250 years, one is necessarily restricted to the barest of facts, details so often 
desirable are impossible. However, in deali11g with the histonJ of Cheltenham 
it is the aim of the writers to cover as much literary territory as possible 
and give to all generous mention. 

In passing we would pay tribute to the generosity of the Rowland family 
for supplying data which assured the success of this article. 

On March 16, 1681, William Penn granted to Nehemiah Mitchell, a tract 
of 250 acres. From this tract on July 20, 1690, a 6 V2 acre tract was sold 
by Richard Hall to Richard Dungworth who erected thereon a grist mlll 
operated by the waters of Quesinominy Creek. Since the topography of the 
country remained unchanged and from information handed down through 
the Rowland family the site of this mill would be that of the afterward 
known as the "front mill". The artists conception of the mill, as depicted, 
is based on old prints and what is known of the dam in later years, for as 
late as 30 years ago, the gigantic buttonball tree stood on the edge of 
the falls. 

On January 30, 1711-12, by deed poll, the premises passed into the 
hands of Thomas Canbey and 't✓. orris Morris. In 1715, Richard Martin ac­
quired a third interest in this mill and gradua1ly increased his holdings until 
his death when it became the property of his three grandsons. In 1767, 
Thomas and John Martin became the owners of the mUI together with one 
hundred acres of ground extending from the Queslnomf ng or Frankford Creek 
to what is now known as Cottman Street and the road to Germantown or 
Central Avenue West. The mill and )and remained fn the possession of the 
Martin family for about 60 years. 

While real estate movement was apparently slow, there were built 
during this period at least two roads. One, Martins Mill Road from City 
Llne at what we now call Station Bridge to a point along Ashbourne Road 
ctt Heller School. The other, the road "leading from Germantown to Lower 
Dublin, now known as Cen.tral Avenue, and including our present day 
Ashbourne Road and Oak Lane Road. 

Between 1784 and 1796 appeared these individual ·characters who did 
much in their day to shape the destiny of Milltown-Jacob Myers (who held 
an interest In the grist mill and a large agriculture tract), Colonel Samuel 
Miles and Benjamin Rowland. 

10 



Cheltenham Township's 40th Anniversary of Incorporation 

We, J. W. DEAN & SON, are proud of 

the opportunity given us by the people 

of the Village of Cheltenham to place 

our names in this Historic Booklet. 
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Cheltenham. Village 250th A1miversary Celebration 

On August 7, 1792 Richard and Isabella Lake conveyed to Col. Samuel 
Miles 175.25 acres of land down stream from the grist mill. On L···:Js Col. 
Miles erected a mill with a large dam one mile below for the purpose o( 
slitting nail rods for the manufacturing of cut nails which were in great 
demand at that time. 

. ' 

Oo 

Original Rowland Mansion Now Shovel Works Garden 

When the first mills were built, h!ghways were needed to bring in 
raw materials and to take the finished product to market. Roads were few 
and far between; and one of the most Important contributions of the mills 
to the development of any community lay in giving definite direction to 
highways and roads. Col. Miles needed an outlet for his newly built 
slitting mlll. About a mile upstream was the road to Germantown and one 

12 



Cheltenham Township's 40th Anniversary of Incorporation 

VOTE REPUBLICAN IN 1940 

In addition to voting for 

WENDELL L. WILLKfE for President 

and 

CHARLES L. McNARY for Vice Pr~sident 

Give your support to these Republican Candidates: 

JAY COOKE, United States Senator 

J. WILLIAM DITTER, Congressman 

J. F. MALONE, JR., State Treasurer 

FRED T. GELDER, Auditor General 

. LAMBERT CADW ALADER-State Assembly 
First Legislative District 

CHARLES H. BRUNNER-State Assembly 
Second Legislative District 

EDWIN WINNER 
LLOYD H. WOOD 
HOWARD F. BOORSE-State Assembly 

Third Legislative District 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY REPUBLICAN COMMITI'EE 

Lloyd H. Wood, Chairman 
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Clieltenl,am Village 250th An.niversar1J Celebi ation 

to Frankford; about an equal distance, downstream w .1s the road from 
Frankford to Milestown. With little delay a road starting at a point about 
two hundred feet west of Richard Martin's m111 and for:nir.g a junction with 
the road to Germant<;wn was cut through the orchard of Col. Miles. It con­
Unued for some di•1tance through the Miles property, then followed the 
boundary line of thr~ Miles and Amos Jones lands, each owner bearing an 
equal share in its maintenance--and ultimately joined the road from Frank­
ford to Milestown. This road, known as Slitting Mill Road, retained its name 
until recent years when the upper portion was renamed Rowland Avenue 
and the lower part, after being open to public travel since 1793, was closed 
for the Melrose Country Club's golf course. 

In I ?93 Benjamin Rowland purchased the mills from Jacob Myers and 
others but due to difficuJ!y in securing a clear title, owing to the dea:h of 
Jacob Myers, conveyance was not actually cc isummated until 1794 under 
order of court. The deed was recorded in 1796. 

In 1796 Col. Miles sold a portion of his land to Benjamin Rowland who 
no:v owned land on both sides of the Tacony. Beniamin Rowland sold a 
portion of the land on the south fJide to his nephew Benjamin Rowland, Jr., 
ex blacksmith who began the manufacture of bed screws so much in use for 
the four poster beds of that period. 

Soon homes were built for the workers in the slltling mill, grist mill and 
bed screw factory; for the mills were breathing life into the quiet valley and 
a small settlement had formed. Though little is known about the character 
and interests of the early owners of these industries, it ls apparent that they 
were concerned about the finer things of life and the improvement of the 
intellect. Hardly two months had elapsed after PenJamln Rowland had pur­
chased his land when, on July 20, 1796, he joined Col. Miles and Frederick 
Altemus in dedicating a tract of ground to be used for a school. It Is int9r­
estlng to note that the present George K. Holler Schoel fronting on Ashbourne 
Road occupies the site of the original school built in 1795. It is stated on 
good authority that this is one of the oldest, tf not the oldest free school in 
Pennsylvania, occupying its original site for so long a period. Miss Carrie 
V. Speck, at one time, principal oi this school, has prepared muc-h inter• 
esting data on its life. 

In the early part of the nineteenth century, the industrial picture of this 
community began to change, The French Revolution and Napoleon's 
ambitions had plunged Europe into an unsettled state. England llnd France 
were waging a war of blockades. The cloth and iron which formerly hnd 
come to America from the mills of England were needed at home. When 
the supply of manufactured goods from England was thus cut off, factories 
to produce these materials were started in the eastern st~tes of the United 
States. This rapid development of manufacturing in the early 1800' s is 
called the Industrial Revolution of the United States. Factories were built 
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Cheltenham Township's 40th Anniversary oJ Incorporation 

D E E p R 0 0 T E D 

HOLD fast to that of the past which been the very fiber of our life and our 

is worthy. Push forward into the nation - free speech and free press 

fotur~ with renewed vigor - a com• for enlJghtonod citizenry. 

munil)' united by two and a half _ __. . .. _ The TIMES CHRONICLE is proud ··r .. ~; 
centuries of progressivE action. }~' ;:' __ ·. ·' if,;· to be the standard bearer, of this 

In our position as prin~er and pub- ·:_,: . _: _: _· ~-;: deep rooted American right. The 

lishor we . are carrying forth a ;,~ I: ~
1
: way is door. We go forward 

resronslbihty which has always ·--;-, fJ . . together! 
*" .:..- . 

TDIBI CIIBONIC:LB C:OJIP.IINY,lnc. 
rR(NttllS ANO PU&l.lSl-!ERS &INC£ m, 

411 JOHNSON STREET, )ErmmoWN, PENNA, 
. . 

sYfZ?fiFEllF· ·i7EZWiTtr?iCiiB7FiM t t pj-jj}jEi?fifitn· H 11311 t w-tftlfHIEffEfiZ ,,- N 
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Chelbenham Village 250th Anniversary Celebration 

along the small streams with a steep fall. They were owned by individuals, 
partners or members of a farr.ily. The owners and workers knew each other 
and had mutual interests. The typical mill town was a small self-containing 
community nestling among the hl11s in a beautiful rural setting. The MlJl­
town of our story, like numerous other communities was to respond to these 
influences of the outside and wider world; and the old gristmill was gradually 
being pushed into the background for King Steel to begin his reign. 

Benjamin Rowland, Junior, the nephew had, in the meantime, expanded 
his activities to make spades by hand in addition to bed screws. In 1802 
he purchased from his uncle additional ground on the south side of th9 
stream. \Vith this went the privilege of using for power the water of the 
stream that remained after Benjamin Rowland, Senior, had drawn off sufficient 
water to operate the two wheels of his mill. The manufacture of spades 
proved to be a good ventuff even though the methcds were crude. 

Iri 1802 Benjamin Rowland, Senior, purchased from William Shannon, 
an auctioneer and Sheriff of PhiladelphJa County, seventy-seven acres of 
ground along what is now Jenkintown Road west of the road to Germantown. 
He sold nineteen and three quarter acres of this tract to his nephew, Bonjamin 
Rowland, Junior, who erected thereon, at a site on the Tacony Creek near 
the present Jenkintown Road, a tilting and blade mill, in which the two 
Rowlands each had a half interest. From the time of its construction this 
was known as the Upper Mill. Its power was derived from a large dam 
with about 25 feet fall, located about 250 feet above the mill on a branch 
of the Tacony and also from a dam on the Tacony itself southwest of Jenkin­
town Road. The race way or flume of this dam was built under the road way. 
Forges were erected and plates were hammered until they assumed a spade­
like form. These were carted to the lower mi1ls where they were shaped and 
finished. As m1,1ch work as possible was done in the Upper Mill because 
of the greater power. 

In 1810, Benjamin Rowland, Senior, sold the Lower, or grist mill property 
to John Black and Samuel Peeky, and retired to live at Shoemakertown. 
Samuel Peaky in 1813 sold his half interest to John Black who held owner­
ship until 1834 when the entire property was re-sold to Jacob Peaky. 

It was during this period that an effort was made to Increase the output 
of the grist mill by enlarging the two wheels which powered the mills. 
This would have robbed the shovel mills across the creek of all its power 
since the entire stream would have been diverted through the grlstmtlls. 
Thomas Rowland, who had purchased the shovel mill from his father, 
Benjamin, sought and obtained an injunction against such a procedure. 

The grist mill, thereafter. changed hands several times and became the 
property of Charlotte C. Black, who built a frame general store across the 
road from the mill. This was the first of its kind in the community. 
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Elkins Building & Loan 
Association 

of Philadelphia 
Meets First Wednesday Evening of each month 

3314 GERMANTOWN AVENUE - ORGANIZED 1912 
OFFICERS 

President 
IIER)IAN F. SCHWEFLER, 423 E. Wadsworth Ave., Mount Airy 

Vlce-Preddent 
ARCHIBALD KELLOCK, 5031 \V. Chester Ave. 

Treasurer 
THOS. L. TORPUI, 316 Gerard Ave .. Elkins Park 

SecretarO 
RICHARD TORPIN, Jr., 313 Ashbourne Rd., Elkins Park, Pa. 

Sollcllor 
J. RJJSSELL BREITINGER. Esq., 901 Liberty Trust Building 

DIIUr.TORS 
ANTON ROEGER . . ... ... 526 W. Girard Avenue 
THEODORE H. LEUPOLD ..... . ... 5924 N. 7th Street 
ROBERT S. DOWNS ..... . . . .. 710 W. Tioga Street 
ANTON ROEGER, Jr. ..... .... .. .. 3337 N. 17th Street 
ARMIN L. SAEGER ..... ... ... . .... 3329 N. 18th Street 
RICHARD TORPIN, 3d . . ..... . .. . .. ... .. ....... Elkins Park 
J. RUSSELL BREITINGER .. .. .. . . . . . ... 901 Liberty Trust Bldg. 
WALTER CAMENISCH .. . ..... 2220 W. Estaugh Strt'et 
HE:NRY W. SCARBOROUGH, Jr. .. ..... ......... . ... 1216 Real Estate Trust Bldg. 

Our Record Speaks For Itself - New Series Opens October 2nd 
List of Maturities Whk.h Were Paid In Cash When Due 

Serita 

A 
B 
C 
D 
1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
18 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 

Amount 
Paid In 

$141.00 
141.00 
140.00 
138.00 
138.00 
138.00 
138.00 
138.00 
134.00 
135.00 
135.00 
135.00 
135.00 
135.00 
135.00 
136.00 
136.00 
138.00 
138.00 
138.00 
144.00 
144.00 
144.00 
145.00 
145.00 
146.00 
145.00 
145.00 
1«.00 
144.00 
141.00 
138.00 
138.00 
137.00 
137.00 

Average Amount for 
Entire Length of Time 

$70.50 
70.50 
70.00 
69.00 
69.00 
69.00 
69.00 
69.00 
67.00 
67.50 
67.50 
67.50 
67.50 
67.50 
67.50 
68.00 
68.00 
69.00 
69.00 
69.00 
72.00 
72.00 
72.00 
72.50 
72.50 
73.00 
72.50 
72.50 
72.00 
72.00 
70.50 
69.00 
69.00 
68.50 
68.50 
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Profll 
per Share 
$59.00 

59.00 
60.00 
62.00 
62.00 
62.00 
62.00 
62.00 
66.00 
65.00 
65.00 
65.00 
65.00 
65.00 
65.00 
64.00 
64.00 
62.00 
62.00 
62.00 
56.00 
56.00 
56.00 
55.00 
55.00 
54.00 
55.00 
55.00 
56.00 
56.00 
59.00 
62.00 
62.00 
63.00 
63.00 

Percentage of Return 
On Investment 

7.07% 
7.07% 
7.29% 
7.76% 
7.76% 
7.76% 
7.76% 
7.76% 
8.76% 
8.50% 
8.50% 
8.50% 
8.50% 
8.50% 
8.50% 
8.24% 
8.24% 
7.76% 
7.76% 
7.76% 
6.44% 
6.44% 
6.44% 
6.24% 
6.24% 
6.04% 
6.24% 
6.24% 
6.44% 
6.44% 
'1.07% 
7.76% 
7.76% 
1.99% 
7.99% 
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In 1846, Charlotte C. Black sold her entire holding in the mill to Thomas 
and Benjamin Rowland for $9000 who used it for grinding chocolate and 
spices and at the same time continued to make spades and shovels in the 
mill across the creek as well as in the Upper Mill. Gradually, however, all 
of the mills were devoted to the manufacture of spades and shovels. 

After 1824 the growth of the steel industry was rapid. 
In 1831 the Rowland family began to manufacture saws. It is claimed 

they were the first saw manufacturers in the United States. While there 
is no doubt concerning the truth of this statement there is. some question as 
to whether the first saws were actually made in Cheltenham or Philadelphia. 
An earlier record of 1802 refers to William Rowland, saw maker of Phila­
delphia. The saws that were made in Cheltenham were fabricated 
in a little stone building along Ashbourne Road, long since razed. The 
blades of these saws, before having the teeth cut, wern taken to different 
grist mills, throughout the country surrounding, where they were smoothed 
by being pass,~ between the wheels. 

Later this firm, T. and B. Rowland, joined with William and Harvey 
Rowland under the firm name of T. Rowland and Brothers. 

In August 16, 1851, the four brotherf? bought out James and Nathan 
Saw Works in Kensington and formed a new firm, William Rowland and 
Company, thus removing the saw industry from Cheltenham. 

By the middle of the 19th century, a good sized village called Milltown 
had grown up about the mills. 

In 1816 a group of men decided to form a Methodist Church and selected 
the public school for the purpose of holding a meeting. The prejudice 
against the Methodists was so strong that the ministers were not permitted 
to enter the building but stood on the outside. However, the movement con­
tinued to grow in strength until I 846 when Thomas Rowland deeded a piece 
of ground for the erection of the first Methodist Episcopal Church. He later 
also deeded a tract of ground for the parsonage. This was the first church 
to be erected in this village, The lot in the rear of the church was used for 
u burial ground and even at the present time is the only burial ground 
within the limits of Cheltenham Village. In connection with tho cemetery it 

might be stated that though the deeds prohibited the burial of any person 
of the colored race, exception was made in connection with the death of 
Eliza Larkins an old slave who had been in the service of the Rowlands 
for a number of years and who,· when she died, was buried in the Rowland 
Burial lot. 

Until 1855 the mail for the Village had been brought by horseback from 
Philadelphia by Slitting Mill Road and later by stage coach from Frankford. 
In 1852, John Haines of Frankford, ran the mail route from Philadelphia to 
Newtown, 27 miles. For the Department's requirement of "2 h. c." (two 
horse coach} he received $489. a year for three round trips a week, man 
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and beasts. His route left the Central Office, 5 ½ miles to Felton ville, thence 
up Rising Sun Avenue to Oxford Station (changed to "Oxford Church" in 1857) 
and so on to Fox Chase, Huntingdon Valley, Sorrel Horse and other place;:; 

· still familiar to us. At each of these places, a local Post Ciiice was main­
tained. In 1855, Thomas Rowland made application for a local post office 
which was denied by the Department because there was another post office 
by the name of "Milltown" in the State. John Cooke, who owned the property 
now occupied by the Ashbourne Country Club suggested the name of 
Cheltenham. This was accepted by the Post Office Department. Thomas 
Rowland, appointed June 4, 1855, was the first Post Master, and his "com­
pensation" for the first year was $29.32. 

When Thomas Rowland opened Cheltenham Post Office in 1855, the 
Mail Stage Route was increased by a mile and John Haines was allowed 
$15 a year extra, for deflecting from Rising Sun Avenue. He undoubtedly 
would have entered along Martin's Mill Road to the Post Office in Myers' 
(now Houldin's) Store, returning by the same way, to serve Oxford 
Church P. 0. That was a very, very long mile. 

Quite evidently John Haines thought so too. Although mail carriers 
made considerable profit in carrying passengers and local parcels, John's 
bid in 1856, for the same service, was $1200. and he lost out to George 
M. Lodge, of Newtown, who assumed the route, including Cheltenham P. 0., 
for $700. It was an arduous run. The two horse coach, under Lodge, left 
Newtown every Tuesday, Thursday and Saturday at 5 A. M. It was due in 
Philadelphia at 11 A. M. Returning the same day, it left the Central Post 
Office, Philadelphia, at 2 P. M., due to arrive at Newtown at 8 P. M. 

One can well fancy the importance of this contact with the outside 
world, to the villagers along this, and hundreds of similar routes, in the 
days before postage stamps were in use and when the Post Master had 
to mark the postage rate upon each letter, in ink. 

On September 27, 1866, Albert J. Myers, who owned tho general store, 
received the appointment as Post Master. His first year's salary was $160. 
He served for nearly 31 years-the longest incumbency in the history of 
the Post Office. He was succeeded, June 25, 1897, by his son, Eugene Myers 
anc! on February 3, 1900, by his daughter, Mary W. Myers. 

In 1868, the "High Mill," as it was called, because of its four stories, 
was burned to the ground. This mill was originally the merchant and grist 
mill and spice grinding mill, which had been operating from 1690, although 
it had been enlarged at the time of Its purchase by Thomas Rowland. This 
was replaced by a one story building over 200 feet in length. 

In 18110, Edward Waln, purchased a tract of land along Ashbourne 
and what we now know as Jenkintown Roads, from James Caskey and 
Benjamin Rowland, Sr. This land of Benjamin Rowland was part of the 
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Upper Mill tract. Edward Wdln was a lawyer and sportsman. He erected 
on this tract a beautiful house, racing and breeding stables. The Estate re­
ceivsd the name of "Walthamstowe." The large field along Ashbourne Road 
was used as a race track and it was not an uncommon sight to see the 
spirited horses of the Waln's stable being exercised on the tract preparatory 
to a race. 

Mrs. Waln, whose maiden name was Ellen Nixon, was a lineal descend­
ent of John Nixon, who read the Declaration of Independence from the steps 
of Independence Hall in 1776 and also of Robert Morris, the financier of 
the Revolution. The house itself was a show place of the community, stand­
ing on the summit of the hill reached by a lane a quarter-mile in length, 
flanked on either side by rows of Norway Maples. It is regretable to note 
that at this time none of the Waln family remains alive. 

Those who have died include, Mrs. Chas. Custis Harrison, wife of the 
ex-provost of the University of Pennsylvania; Mrs. R. B. Shepherd, wife of 
the arch-deacon of New Jersey; Jacob Waln, Morris Waln, Nicholas Waln, 
and Edward Waln. 

Mr. Morris Waln who acquired a country wide reputation as a horse­
man frequently entered horses in races in different sections of the country. 
Failing to obtain the consent of Miss Rhawn's parents to their marriage, 
Morris, in company with Mr. Strong, the son of a wealthy New York family, 
started on an extensive trip horseback through the unbroken southwest, 
where both were murdered by their half-breed cook. 

The present owners of this tract are no less distinguished. This properly 
was purchased in 1929 by Joseph S. L. Levering Wharton who was con­
nected with the Wharton Steel Works. His widow, Amelia Bird Shoemaker 
Wharton who now realdes there, le a lineal descendent of Toby Leech 
who was responsible for naming Cheltenham Township. 

About 1868 ~he Shovel Mill discontinued the manufacturing of shovels 
at the Upper Mill by the process of hammering out steel bars and began 
the manufacturing of a type of shovel known as "Patent Work". Slnco this 
proces1:1 was known only to the Ames Shovel and Tool Company, Thomas 
Fisher was sent by the Ames Company at North Easton, Mass., to Chelten­
ham to instruct the workmen in the art of making the raw type of shovel 
which was then made from blades to which a front strap was welded. 

In 1872 the only means of transportation to thP. City proper was by 
way of stage coach to Frankford, thence by "dummy" and horse car to 
the canter of the city. 

In 1872 work was began on the Philadelphia, Newtown and New York 
Railroad. In 1675 it was completed and opened as far as Cheltenham. 
In 1876, the extension was laid to Fox Chase and service opened to that 
point. In this year of the Centennial trains were run over this branch and 
transfened over to Pennsylvania Railroad, at North Penn Junction to the 
Fair Grounds In Fairmount Park, conveying visitors from this section 
direct to the grounds. 
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A BILL .. CAN YOU 
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In October, 1886, Charles D. Conklin, Sr., who was then beginning to 
develop as a builder, contracted to construct a second story to the Mill 
office, located in the comer of the mill facing directly on Central Avenue. 
While the building was in the course of construction a fire started at night 
at the mlll from an overheated bearing and flames spread throughout the 
entire long building, The only water supply was that furnished by a bucket 
brigade formed by the workers who were roused from their beds and 
carried water from the creek. Edwin S. Rowland rode hastily to Frankford 
to secure the aid of a Philadelphia Fire Company and on the return to the 
fire, the engine became stuck in the mud. Mr. Rowland rode his horse 
through the glare of the fire and ordered the teamsters to get their horses 
from the stable in the rear of the mlll, ford the stream and pull the engine 
to the fire. Despite the efforts of the bucket brigade and the Frankford fire­
men the main part of the mill was burned. Mr. Conklin Josi all his tools 
in this fire. 

While the ruins were still smoldering a ml11 wright was engaged, 
lumber was ordered and the work of re-construction began immediately. 
This mill became the second largest shovel factory in the United States. 
However, with the opening of the Century, ii became apparent in view of 
the rapid practice of mergers that this company could r,ot successfully com­
pete, so in 1901 the entire land was sold to the Ames Shovel and Tool 
Company which operated 1t :mUI June 2, 1928 when II was finally closed. 

In 1891, the Church of Our Lady of Presentation was built from material 
brought from the Church of the Visitation In Richmond, Philadelphia, and 
re-erected in Cheltenham. 

During the nineties, both the Myers and Beecher farms had been 
plotted for development. All the present, well known streets were laid out, 
and Central and Ryers Avenues soon became actualities. The cross streets 
developed more slowly. 

Under the visions of William B. Gayde, Charles D. Conklin, James 
Mitchell and John Pike, the houses grew and Cheltenham gradually became 
a united VHlage with the first consciousness of thal local loyalty to, and 
pride in its own citizens and Institutions that Impresses everyone even 
superficially acquainted with it. 

Mrs. Bawn, widow of Robert W. Ryerss fulfllled her desire of long 
standing by conveying the lots at the comer of Cottman street and Central 
avenue for the erection of an Episcopal Chapel. Departing for China, where 
she died soon after, she provided for the erection cf the beautiful St. Aldan's 
which we know today, and which long wlll attest the archlteclural mastery 
of Edward H. Wigham. 

In 1914 the Methodist Church, under the Inspired ·leadership of the 
Rev. Abram Vivien, moved its congregation to a new Gothic building at 
Myrtle and Central Avenues, and the simple and sh.1t0ly old "Meeting 
House'' on Rowland avenue, hallowed by years of worshipful recollections, 
was demolished. 
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The former Episcopal Chapel at Laurel and Central Avenues was 
shortly afterwards conveyed to the Pilgrim Lutheran Congregation. In 1921, 
the Friends' Meeting House was erected on Hyers A venue and with that, 
the present complement of Church properties in the Village was completed. 

During these same decades, the secular interests of the Town flourished 
surely and securely, The two calamitous fires already described, had left 
their impression upon the men of the growing community. In 1896 Chelten­
ham Hook and Ladder Co. No. l was organized. Now, ensconced in its 
perfectly appointed home on Hyers Avenue, as a part of the marvelously 
efficient Township Fire Department, it stands ready, day and night, to 
prevent and extinguish fires in line with the most enlightened modern tech­
nique. Its former home, lower down on Hyers Avenue was purchased by 
Forsythe-Oldham-Griffith Post No. 497, American Legion, and within its walls 
are now sponsored several of the town's public spirited activities. 

In 1907 the New York Short Line was constructed, and since that time, 
Cheltenham has seen much. of the heavy passenger and freight traffic of 
the Reading, and the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad systems. 

When Ernest Rieben opened his Drug Store at Centr\ll and Beecher 
avenues in 1904, he pioneered at a corner which is now the important business 
center of the upper part of the Village. The growth of Philadelphia to the 
Northeast, and of Rowland Park, to the south, have longated the town and 
developed Central Avenue throughout its length into a primary business 
artery. 

The Post Office, beyond other public institutions, marked the steady 
growth of the Village in population, correspondence and business inter­
change, HWTY L. Shull, appointed Postmaster in 1904, resigned in 1910 
and the first competitive Civil SE•rvice &xamtnations for the office was then 
held. Frank C. Fisher qualified and on January 16, 1911 was appointed for 
the period which ended in 1934, the next to the longest incumbency in 
that office. 

Under Mr. Fisher the Post Oifice was removed from the corner of the 
Village store, which it had occupied since 1855 into the Laird property 
Immediately opposite. In 1913 it attained a third class rating; in 1915, it 
was removed to its present location, 502 Central avenue, where in 1930 
it was raised to second class rating. From this building, at Christmas time, 
1920 and 1921, Mr. Fisher Instituted Cheltenham's first postal delivery, a 
service which was quite voluntary on his part and entirely at his own ex­
pense. In 1934, the present Incumbent, George Ramsey, was provisionally 
appointed, and he was permanently confirmed on June 10, 1935. 

Until 1924 all the banking business of Cheltenham had been con­
ducted through outside banks, either al Frank.ford, Fox Chase or other 
sections. In this year a strong movement developed to institute a bank in 
Cheltenham. This movement met with considerable opposlllon as it was 
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felt that, located as it was, Cheltenham had no need for a bank. However, 
Franc:s R. Taylor, who had sponsored the movement, persevered in J !ls 
intentions and The Cheltenham National Bank was opened in 1924 with 
Mr. Taylor as President. Needless to say. the wisdom of the movement 
has long since been apparent, it now having total assets of $1,7CO,OOO. This 
Institution has been a credit to the town and a medium of assistance to 
many, 1;;r.;x'Clally during the Great Depression, beginning in 1929. 

In the same year the Rowland Mansl.:m and estate was sold for a 
dwelling deveiopment which as a sub-division of Cheltenham was named 
Rowland Park. Many attractive homes have been built that have addE'-d 
materially to the population of the town. 

In 1931 a movement developed sponsored by the Cheltenham Improve­
ment Association to have the entire tract of the Ames Co. purchased for a 
recreation center. The price set for the property at that time by the Ames 
Company was deemed prohibitive but on December 4, 1934 a compromise 
was reached by which the Township acquired the entire holdings of the 
Arnes Shovel and Tool Company for a fractional part of the original price. 
Today Jt stands as a monument to the efforts of those whose foresight and 
vision supplied the necessary energy to continue the fight for a place where 
the youth of the Township can be trained along athletic lines without the 
hazard of playing in the street. Tookany Park with Us 36 acres will stand 
as a thing of beauty and a Joy for the youths of today and the future. 

Returning once more to the site of the slitting mlJls. Ir. February 23, 
1800, Samuel Miles conveyed ½ Interest In his slitting mill and the land 
adjoining Slitting Mill Rd. to James Rowland, no relation, however, to the 
Rowland family. Later the entire interest passed to John Rowland whose 
wife, Harriet, acquirod the property at his death. 

In 1849, Allred Hunt, who had previous experience persuaded Mrs. 
Rowland to utilize the power of the mill dam to operate a steel rolling mllJ. 
Two plants, a puddling mill on 0ne side of 1he dam and a rolUng mill on 
the other were constructed. These mills produced boiler plates which were 
rolled into "blooms" and were hauled by siring teams aL:mg Slitting Mill 
Road through Mtlltown to Frankford. In 1858 these mills were abandoned, 
Mr. Hunt who had been in charge became the first president of the Bethlehem 
Iron Company when It was organized In 18f.Q. This property finally passed 
into the hands of Mr. Andrews, a distributor and at his death became the 
property of his doughier, Mrs. John Emery. The Curlis Publishing Company 
finally purchased it for the club, for their omployeeq, The place now is 
known as the Melrose Country Club. Briefly In conclusion there are several 
high-lights in the narratlvn which I had previously omitted to mention. 

In 1935 ! wrotv an account of the outstanding personalilles of the town. 
At that time I mentioned one, WIHiam T. Johanns who lived ln obscurity 
and whose work I predicted would not be appreciated unli) after his passing. 
Recently, after his death, many beautiful works of art were discovered in 
hts studio of which even his family were not aware. It iH Indeed to be 
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regretted that a man possessed of such outstanding ability should have 
preferred to live as he did, passing up a possible chance to fame and fortune. 

The property owned by Chas. Llewellyn, at Beecher and Eli:n Avenues 
cnce owned by a Mr. Beecher. Several years ago a report was circulated 
that it was in this house that Harrie~t Beecher Stowe wrote the first ten 
chapters of Uncle Tom's Cabin and also the poem entitled "The Elms". Evi­
dently this was a revival of an old stmy since the writer's mother, who was 
a friend of the Beecher family as well as Miss Phoebe Krewson who resides 
on Laurel Avenue had both spoken of the same rumor and had stated that 
Mr. Beecher and his family laughingly disclaimed any relation to the August 
Beecher family, and stated that Mrs. Stowe had never even visited Chelten­
ham. Communication with the family of Henry Ward Beecher in Connecticut 
a few years ago confirmed this statement. 

Of the families who have resided in the village continuously for 100 
years are very few. Among which are the Rowland, Gayde, Harvey and 
Lockard familtes. 

Among those who have held outstanding positions have been Mr. 
Howard Rowland, owning the proud distinction of not only holding the 
position of first Commissioner of Cheltenham but also that of being the first 
president of the Board of Commissioners of Cheltenham Township. Mr. John 
R. Pike, who in 1900 was a Republican Delegate when the Convention for Wm. 
McKinley was held in Philadelphia. One of his sons, Harold C. Pike, who 
was born at this place, followed in his footsteps in public life becoming 
successively the Secretary of the Board of Commissioners, Member of the 
Lt;-glslature, Executive Secretary of the Board of Commissioners, the present 
Township Manager as well \'.IS Ropublican Leader of the Township. Mr. Chas. 
D. Conklin, Sr., who had baen active in civic and political circles and at his 
death was real estate assessor of Cheltenham Township. His son, Charles 
D. C.onklin, Jr,, being the present president of the Board of Commissioners 
of Cheltenham Township. 

In 1868 Jacob Krewson purchased from Thompson and Lardner families 
a large tract of land at the northwestern section of the town. His son, James 
Krews,')n later developed it Into a large nursery, Mr. James Krewson, him­
self, having served in the position of County Commissioner and his son, 
Howard, later became a Township Commissioner. 

This fn a brief dis-Jointed way the condensed history of Cheltenham 
has been covered. Owing to the limited space, we close our narrative in 
the hope that some day this material muy be of use to some historian who 
may write of a pleasant valley which was the mecca of arllsls from New 
York and elsewhere whose people had lived at peace for 250 years and of 
whom con be truthfully said 

"Far from the madding crowds Ignoble strife 
Their sober wishes never learned to stray 
Along the cool sequestered vale of lffe 
They kept the even tenor of their ways", 
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By LOUIS A. HIRSCH, JR. and HORACE J. SUBERS 

Cheltenham Township was one of the earliest surveyed divisions of 
Phlladalphla County. The Survey appears upon Thomas Holme's map of 
the "Improved Part of the Province of Pensllvania in America" begun 
in 1683 and published in London in 1687. It shows 14 owners upon the 
rectangular strip which ls in the extreme southeast corner of what ls now 
Montgomery County set off from Philadelphia in 1784. The most promit1ent 
of the 14 purchasers of land who came to live in Cheltenham Township 
were Toby Leech and Richard Wall-two Quakers from Cheltenham in 
Gloucestershire who undoubtedly gave the township its name. The town­
ship ls 5 ½ mtles long and 1 ½ miles wide, It ls bounded by Abington and 
Springfield Townships and by Philadelphia County. Th'3 first record of 
its name appears to be in the minute creating what is now Abington Meeting 
of the Religious Society of Friends. In this minute, passed December 3, 
1683, a meeting place for the Society was established at the house of 
Richard Wall near Cheltenham. 

The home of Richard Wall, at what ls now York Road and Church 
Road, became the center of a considerable settlement. As we have seen, 
Viall came from Hasfield near Cheltanham in Gloucestershire, with his family 
which consisted of his wife, his son Richard Wall, Jr., and his wife who was 
Rachel Leech, a sister of Toby, and their daughter Sarah, The Walls 
had 700 acres here. 

Arriving In the mid-summer of 1682 he undoubtedly constructed his 
residence before winter set in. Whether this was of logs or of stone we 
do not know, but as there was stone Immediately available, it is probable 
that he soon built a two-story stone house of two rooms without a collar, 
whJch now forms the northwest comer of the present house. It was added 
to about 1725, and the large portion was built about 1800. It ls now part 
of tha Wall Park, a fitting memorial to the first settlers. Richard Wall, Jr. 
died in 1689, and his father in 1698. Sarah thus became the heiress 
of the estates. 

The Wall House waH one of the very earliest meeting places for Friends, 
who then met In the homes of members, as no Meeting Houses had yet 
been built, and It seems to be one of the oldest stJJl standing. On account 
of a bequest in 1697 of 120 acres fn Abington Townohlp by John Barnes, 
a meeting House was bullt there in 1699-1700 and the Meeting removed to 
its present location. 

The marriage of many of the prominent Friends of the district took 
place fn Richard Wall's house during the time that the Meeting used it, 

32 



Cheltenham Township's 40th Anniversary of Incorporation 

COMPLIMENTS OF 

CAPITOL CLEANERS AND DYERS 

Compliments of 

BUTLER BUICK 

Jenkintown, Pa. 

l=iiiii-iiiii-aiiiiii'.F . .,;;;;;;;;;;;;;;iii..iiiii;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;iiiiii.iii;;;;;;;;~ 

aJwtrkeul1a11t lftllagt 
SINGLE HOMES - $6500. up 

WAVERLY ROAD W~T OF 
LIMEKILN PIKE 

Glcnsidc 

George \V. Carson, Builder 

THE PLUMBING & HEATING SERVICE CO. 
Registered 

260 ASHBOURNE ROAD ... PHONE, MAJESTIC 2994 

ELKINS PARK, PENNA. 

OIL BURNER 
ESTIMATES CHEERFULLY GIVEN SALES AND SERVICE 

AIR CONDI'rIONINO 

Modem Conveniences at Moderate Prices 

COMPLIMENTS OF 

BEAVER COLLEGE, Jenkintown, Pa. 

RAYMON KISTLER, D.D.; L.L.D., President 

33 



Cheltenham Village 250th Anniversary Celebration 

Through the marriage of his granddaughter and heiress, Sarah Wall to 
George Shoemaker, the house became the home of the progenitor of that 
important and numerous family which gave its name to the village that sprang 
up around the adjacent mill built by Dorothy Shoemaker, Richard Mather 
and John Tyson in 17 46. Shoemakertown was changed to Ogontz in 1889 
by Jay Cooke, and now is called Elkins Park. 

Sarah Wall married George Shoemaker Jr., a Dutchman, son of George 
and Sarah Shoemaker, who was born in Kriegsheim, Germany ab1ut 1663. 
He came to Cheltenham with his mother and a large family, his father 
having died on the voyage. The widow Sarah Shoemaker purchased from 
Patrick Robinson 200 acres between Richard Wall and John Russell in 1686. 

Dorothy Shoemaker, daughter-in-law of George and Sarah Shoemak~r, 
built the grist mill, already mentioned, in partnership with Richard Mather 
and John Tyson and is described in the agreement, dated November 6, 1746, 
as follows: "Ye s'd mill and for other conveniences abovt ye s'd mill (ye 
race and dam excepted} ls to begin at Toxony Crick, opposite ye s'd Dorothy's 
garden at ye place of s'd crick commonly called and known by the name 
of ye Sheep's-Washing-Place and from thence to extend down ye east side 
of ye s'd crick to the fording place of s'd crick in ye York Rood." The ford­
ing place has long since disappeared and a stone arch took its place 
which remained for 136 years. 

The last Shoemaker to own the property was Charles H. Shoemaker, 
born 1812 and died 1897. On April I, 1847 the estate was sold to Charles 
Bosler, one of Charles H. Shoemaker's employees, who continued to operate 
the mill. His son and grandson, Joseph and Charles kept It going until 
about 25 years ago, In 1927 it was demolished. 

The Friends Meeting, the grist mill, and the residences of some of the 
most important people in the township made this place a distinguished one 
and the first center for many mile& about. It was undoubtedly the nucleus 
about which grew the town which so unfortunately lost the nome 1hat 
rightly belongs to it. 

Other business ventures In the neighborhood were Toby Leech's tannery 
and bakery near his house on Church Road below Shoemakerlown, In 1683, 
Jacob Leech's grist mill there In 1751, Jacob Myer's fork factory In this mill 
in 1848, Myers and Ervien's fork factory and C. Hammond & Son, edge tools, 
across the road in 1840. Later Horace Ervien made carriages on the York 
Road at Shoemakertown. 

The earliest vlllages that appeared are Shoemakertown, Cheltenham, 
Bountytown-later Ashbourne, Camptown- -later LaMott, and Harmer Hill 
or Green Summit at Omrch Road and Limekiln Pike, which has now dis­
appeared. When the North Penn Rail Road was constructed in 1855, the 
towns were greatly developed. The first stations hereabout9 were Ash­
bourne, Old York Road, Church Road, Chelten Hills, Tacony-later Cheltenham 
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and now Jenkintowr,, and Abington-no\\ Glensida. The last two are thA only 
ones that remain today. York Road, 1711, and Lin _ 'ciln Pike, 1716, were the 
principal roads with Abington Road--now Washington Lane, and Church 
Road appearing about 20 years later. Church Road was built und so-called 
in 1736 to connect Trinity Church, Oxford near the Second Street Pike, with 
St. Thomas' Church, Whitemarsh. These two parishes were served by 
one rector who no doubt rode the I 5 miles on horseback. 

The other prominent original settler and owner of several of the original 
strips of land was Toby Leech whose house was on Church Road Just below 
his grist mill, later part of the extensive establishment of Myers and Ervien, 
at Mill and Church Roads. It is supposed the name Cheltenham was given 
to the township by Toby Leech. There were no roadfi near his house when 
it was first built, but in the spring of 1704, a road was laid out from his 
place to Germantown. It later became a part of Church Road. 

The vast estates of the original settlers were divided up ao new families 
came out to the suburbs. One of these, Richard J. Dobbins, a prominent 
Philadelphia builder, purchased a large amount of land once part of the 
Leech tract, comprising the greater part of the village of Ashbourne and 
vicinity. Adjoining Dobbins on the south were the estates of Edward M. 
Davis and Charles Sharpless. 

Although the original settlers were Quakers, other churchen were es­
tablished as the new familles came out. The first one in this district, St. 
Paul's P. E. Church, was built in 1861 at the corner of York and Ashbourne 
Roads. PresbytArian services were first held at Shoemakertown but in 
1878, Richard Dobbins offered o building in the town of Ashbourne to be 
used for a Sunday School and services. The present Ashbourne Presbyterian 
Chur~h was built in 1884 and later added to. 

Education was not neglected. The Public School system was very well 
developed for such a rural community. AU the school dhectors were 
proininent citizens, among whom was Benjamin Rowland Myers, president 
of the school board for many years. Before school buildings were erected 
classes were held in what were once private homes. One of these, and 
probably the first of these, is still standing on Mill Road below Church Hood. 
The Shoemaker School was the first pubHc school building in Shoemaker­
town and was located across from the present Shoemaker school. Later 
the Ashbourne School on Union Avenue was built and used for higher 
education. The High School Building, built in 1906 is now the Elkins PQrk 
Junior High School, and the present High School building was completed 
in 1926. 

Thfs Historical Commemoration is being held to honor the early pioneers 
who eotablished this community, and their successors who have developed 
Jt to its present high f'tandards. 
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(Camp town) 

AS TOLD BY WILLIAM J. BOWSER, SR. 
TO BETTY HAUG 

In 1869 when I first came to LaMott, which is located at the South­
western part of Cheltenham Township, it was a little community, known 
as Camptown, more recently known as LaMott. Upon my arrival in LaMott 
from on Eastern Shore Maryland where I served as a slave there were only 
four colored families in LaMott, namely, William Butcher, William Watson, 
George Henry and William Bowser. 

During the Civil War troops of the 160th Pennsylvania Infantry were 
quartered on that site bounded by Cheltenham Avenue to Willow Avenue 
between what is now known as Sycamore and Penrose Avenues and 
because of the soldiers camp being located here, the town which grew 
around it was known as Camptown. In the midst of this plot stood a massive 
tree which marked the headquarters of General Wagner the Commander 
of this troop. At the end of the Civil War when the camp dismantled, the 
lumber from the barracks was diverted to the· construcllon of houses, for 
the residents of the town, some of which are still standing on what is now 
known as Keenan Street, a few of them are still in the original state, the 
remainder having been remodeled along a modern trend. 

Lucretia Mott, whose home occupied the site where the entrance to 
Latham Park now stands, was a Quaker lady of strong abolitionist tendencieR, 
who during the war accomplished a great deal associated with the "Under­
ground Railroad". Due to her sympathies for the unfortunate colored race, 
the number of colored families in the vicinity increased. Lucretia Mott was 
born in 1793 tmd after many years of anti-slavery activities, departed this 
life in 1880. 

The first street in LaMott to be developed was Willow Avenue, which 
was adjacent to the Davies residence. Mr. Davies, Lucretia Mott's father, 
was a pioneer in aiding the colored residents to secure homes of their own. 
Mr. Davies donated the ground for both the school and the church. The 
school was conveyed in 1877 and the church in 1888. The church which 
was a frame structure was tom down and in 1911 a brick and stone structure 
was erected, under the pastorate of the late Reverend H. D. Brown. 

The philanthropic actlvitles of the late George Widener, whose demise 
was caused by the ill fated sinking of the Titanic, donated a sizeable sum, 
which proved to be of immense assistance as it was given to the people 
at the time of the rebuilding of the church. 

In the old days, the nearest storefi in which to purchase supplies and 
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foods were either in the town of Ogontz or Branchtown. 
The greenhouses which Mr. Campbell now occupies was formerly a 

brick yard owned by Mr. William Watson, one of the first settlers of LaMott, 
from which many of the bricks in the houses today were derived. 

While in the several decades past the population of LaMott has in­
creased, the same deep seated religious atmosphere prevails which has 
been reflected in the lives of the present generation. 

While, as in preceding years, LaMott has a mixed population, at no time 
has local strife deveioped and both white and colored dwell harmoniously. 

We are proud to be considered the outstanding colored community 
in Cheltenham Township and while not assuming an egotistic point of view, 
are an industrious, law abiding, civic minded people. 

We need a strength to keep us true 
And straight, in everything we do; 
We need a power to keep us strong 
When we are tempted to do wrong. 
We need a Grace to keep us pure 
When passion tries its deadly lure. 
We need a h.:>ve to koop us sweet 
When hardness and mistrust we meet; 
We need an arm to be our stay 
When dark with trouble grows our way; 
And naught on earth can these afford 
But all is found in Christ, our Lord. 
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(Chel ten Hills} 

By RALPH MORGAN and HORACE M. LIPPINCOTT 

The Wall House a' Ogontz was among the earliest buildings in Chelten­
ham Township, being started in the summer of 1682. Certainly it is the 
oldest building now standing in Cheltenham Township and for many years 
that part of Cheltenham Township to the northwest of the Wall house, ni­
cluding what is now Chelten Hills and Wyncote was farm land. 

Church Road was laid out Jn 1732, being the route of the minister imported 
from England by the congregations of St. Thomas', Whitemarsh, and Trinity 
Church, Oxford, neither Church of itself being able to support a m\nister 
alone, but by combining were able about 1730 to support a minister between 
them and the good man rode in fair weather and foul from St. Thomas' 
to Oxford and thus made "Church Road." In 1732 the Council was 
petitioned to lay out a road, York Road having been laid om som~ twenty 
years previous. 

In Colonial days there were not many houses although the Mather 
prop9rty at what is now Washington Lone and Church Road was huilt in 
the middle of the eighteenth century. DaHng from the late 18th century and 
early 19th century was the Heacock's farm at what is now Glenside Avenue 
and Heacock Road in Wyncote. The old farm house still stands and is 
occupied by the Heacock family who became florists and greenhouses still 
adjoin the Heacock mansion. Miss Annie Heaccck conducted a famous 
school in the old farm house from about the time of the Civil War until 
the r ~rly 1900's. Many local families sent their children to this school and 
a number of pupils came from out of town and boarded with the HeacJCks. 

Another famous farm in the Wyncote area was the Kent farm, the 
house later being the Beechwood Inn famous as a suburban inn for some 
forty years and is now the Jenkintown site of BetlVer College, The Kent 
meadows extended over the .site of Jenkintown Station and the present 
Wyncote Park. 

Still another old farm h9use of the Township still tlanding was the 
present residence of Isaac Mather at Washington Lone and Township Line. 
Washington Lone, formerly known as Abington Road, was laid out about 
this time, being the means of travel of th,, Friends from Abington Meeting 
to Germantown Meeting. 

During the Civil War an encampment extending from Washington Lone 
and Church .Road to Cheltenham Avenue, under the command of General 
J. Louis Wagner, was used for the drlllfng of colored troops and as such 
caused the settlement of LaMott, named for Lucretia Mott, famous Quaker 
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preacher, and one of the organizers of the underground railroad through 
which slaves escaped from the South to Canada. Lucretia Mott lived on 
York Road just above Cheltenham Avenue and her house was torn down 
only a few years ago, The village of LaMott took its name from Lucretia 
Mott but was first named Camptown being the result of camps for colored 
soldiers. 

Lucretia Mott's son-in-law, Edwin M. Davis, might be termed, after Wm. 
Penn, ..:is the first modem realtor to operate in this section. It was Edwin M. 
Davis who induced many famous Philadelphia families to locate summer 
homes and all-year around residences in Cheltenham Township. Immediately 
foJlowing the Civil War it was he who induced Jay Cooke to locate at Ash­
bourne Road and Washington Lane, John Wanamaker along York Road, 
several families of Lippincotts, including Horace Lippincott, the wholesale 
grocer, Abraham Barker, the banker, the Sturgis's and many others. The 
Barker family owned vast tracts of land in what is now W yncote and it was 
Abraham Barker who became the next realtor in subdividing farm lands 
into home sites. 

The coming of the, North Pennsylvania Railroad through Cheltenham 
Township in 1855 was likewise another impetus to the development of the 
Township and certain village~-Ashbourne, the greater development of 
Ogontz, Chelten Hills and what is now the section around Jenkintown Station. 
In the early days of the railroad the present Jenkintown Station was called 
Abington and settlements began springing up almost from the beginning of 
the railroad. Ogontz, of course had Its beginning almost from the inception 
of the Wall house. In the very early days a mill was erected adjacent to 
the Wall house by George Shoemaker who married the granddaughter of 
Richard Wall and so the settlement of Ogontz dates way back into Colonial 
times, but it was the coming of the Nortli Pennsylvania Railroad that really 
caused the development of Chelten Hills and then Wyncote. 

As stated, Abraham Barker, in subdividing his property in the late 1870' s 
caused the settlement of Wyncote and it was he who named the village 
"Wyncote" despite great protE,sts from the residents of Chelten Hills which 
centered more about the crossing of Washington Lane and the railroad 
which had been the main settlement. 

In the late 1880's Wy~cote came into being as a real village with 
the advent of such families as Henry K. Walt and then the Jenkintown 
Station. In the early 90's James J. Sill, Alison Cochrane, Cortland Cramp, 
Joseph Reed and others built substantial properties in Wyncote. 

All Hallows Episcopal Church was founded about this time, first as a 
chapel, and Calvary Presbyterian Church followed shortly thereafter. 

It was not long after this that Dr. John B. Deaver · and Dr. Harry Deaver 
settled in W~~cote and the community was a flourishing one fifty years 
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SERVICE 

5TH & CHELTENHAM AVE. 
Oak Lane, Pa. 

MELROSE 4635 -- MAJESTIC 2954 

KOPPERS COKE 
ATLANTIC FUEL OIL 

JOS. B. MATHERS, Inc. 
Our Sixty Yenrs Experience Justifies 

Your Confidence 
7913 OXfORD A VE. 

PIL. 0700 
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ago due to the influx of these crnJ other well established families. 
Dr. Wharton Sinkler made a summer home in W yncote about this time 

as did the Brock family, cousins of the Sinklers. Cyrus H. K. Curtis bought 
the Abraham Barker property in the middle 90's when Mr. Curtis was feel­
ing the first flush of success from his publishing venture of the Ladies' Home 
Journal. Upon the acquisition of the Saturday Evening Post he attracted 
George Horace Lorimer, brilliant editor of this then new type of magazine, 
later to be followed by P. S. Collins, also of Curtis fame, and John Gribbel, 
who was making a fortune selling gas meters at this time and was one of 
the backers of Mr. Curtis in his publishing ventures. Spencer K. Mulford 
came to Wyncote in the middle 90's with his leather fortune and soon the 
village of Wyncote was surroumled by large and beautiful estm'-s, 

The coming of W. W. Harrison at Church Road and Easton Road with 
his famous castle that now houses a part of Beaver Coliege was an advent 
of fifty or more years ago but in the development of his property, Mr. Harrison 
all but wiped out the ancient village of Harmer Hill which was established 
at Church and Waverly Roads and of which but few traces remain. 

When the Reading Railroad leased the North Pennsylvania Railroad 
and put through the Philadelphk1 and Bound Brook Railroad which gave 
the Reading access to New York, Jenkintown Station became an important 
junction point. This was in the late 1870's and had much to do with making 
Wyncote an important village due to the increased number of trains that 
passed through Jenkintown Station. 

In the time of the Centennial in 1876, Wyncote achieved importance due 
to the influx of important visitors from all over the world entertained by 
Abraham Barker, who was a banker. His brother, Wharton Barker lived 
across Church Road from the Abraham Barker mansion and the late John 
Gribbel told the writer of these lines scm~ years ago that the first telephone 
line ever to be erected in the United States was bull t between the Abraham 
Barker's house and Wharton Barker's house, approximately one quarter 
of a mile distance. When the young inventor, Alexander Graham Bell was 
endeavoring to seek backing for his telephone device from Philadelphia 
bankers, Mr. Abraham Barker invited a number of the notables in the financial 
world of Philadelphia to observe the demonstration and conversations were 
held between the two houses, much to the ediflcatlon of the assembled "big­
wigs" who were much impressed with the inventio~ but in sitting around 
a table later to determine whether they woul_d back it with cash, they decided 
that while it might be an interesting scientific phenomonon, it was of "no 
practical or commercial value", so Mr. Bell took his invention to Boston where 
men of greater vision backed it. The writer has tried to verify this story with 
the Bell Telephone Company but they apparently have no records of it. 
However, Mr. John Gribbel told the writer that he had Lliis story direct from 
Abraham Barker. 
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Auto Tops Slip Covers 

FRED B. WOLFE 
AUTO UPHOLSTERER 

414 Beecher Ave., Chelteuham, Pa. 

THE GIFT SHOP 
Ada L. Pflueger 

HARRISON AVE. & HIGH SCHOOL RD. 
Elkins Park, Pa. 

Telephone Melrose 1329 

For Home Service Call Melrose 4811 
The Campus Barber Shop 
WHERE YOUR PATRONAGE IS 

HIGHLY APPRECIATED 
7913 HIGH SCHOOL ROAD 

1-:lkins Park, Pa. 
Gnetln Martines, Prop. 

COMPLIMENTS OF 

PAUL MILLILI 

106 S. Easton Rd., Glenside 

ONLY COAL YARD IN CHELTENHAM 

ROBT. C. LAIRD, INC. 
Woodland Ave., Cheltenham, Pa. 

PII. 5533 Chell. 2615 
COAL - LIME - SAND - CEMENT 

Service Fuel Oil Installation 
QUIET AUTOMATIC 

OIL BURNERS 
Philadelphia Burner Service 

AUG. G. GROSS 
Phone: NEBraska 0300 
3553 North Fifth Street 

Philadelphia, Pa. 

BLOCK'S DRUG STORE 
:8023 OLD YORK ROAD 

Next door to Post Office 
PRESCRIPTIONS 

You Phone Melrose 4862 - We Deliver 

Electrlcal Appliances - Refrigerators 
Radios 

PHILCO 
TIME PAYMENTS 

Up to 36 Months To Pay 
SILVER'S 

110 S. Easton Road, Olenslde, Pa. 
Ogontz 372 
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ARMSTRONG'S 
FAIRLAWN FOOD MARKEi' 

GROCERIES - MEATS - PRODUCE 
Call Pil. 5713 200 Central Ave. 

Free Delivery Cheltenham 

FUSSY SHOPPE 
107 CENTRAL AVENUE 

Serving Abbott's Ice Cream The Spooned 
Way That Everyone Is Talking 

About 
TRY SOME TODAY! 

Light Lunch Sandwiches 

JOHN LEIHER 
Best Grades of Beer on Drau~ht 

Coh.-uan St. & Oxford Avenue 
Burholme 

Carl's Cafe, Bar & Restaurant 
Business Men's L\•nch and Platters 

Carl R. Welnkopf, Prop. 
6336 RISING SUN A VE. 

Phone: PILgrlm 9924 

TOWN HALL CAFE 
CHOICE DOMESTIC 
WINES & LIQUORS 
John Palesch, Prop. 

Martins Mill Rd. & Rising Sun Ave. 

Pll,trlm 1101 
Marburg Bottling Works 

Distributors of 
YOUR FAVORITE BEER AND 

SOFT DRINKS 
6015-19 RISING SUN A VENUE 

James Krewson's Sons, Inc. 
NURSERYMEN 

CHELTENHAM, PENNA. 

COMPLIMENTS OF 

PRINCETON GRILLE 
7101 RISING SUN A VENUE 
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Wharton Barker was a candidate for the Presidency of the United States 
in the election of 1892 on the Populist ticket and although badly defeated, 
was, I believe, the only Presidential candidate from Cheltenham Township. 

In the Revolutionacy War, Church Road and V✓ ashlngton Lane played 
an important part. General Smallwood and General Foreman marched over 
Church Road to partake in the Battle of Germantown and the British marched 
over Church Road in their attempt to surprise Washington at Whitemarsh 
after the Battle of Germantown and following the Battle of Whitemarsh, re­
treated over the same route. 

T,here were doubtless many other movements of troops over this old 
road through the environments of Wyncote, particularly General Lacy of 
the American Cavalry Patrol-whose function it was to cut off supplies going 
into Philadelphia-who must have galloped the lengths of Church Road and 
Washington Lane many times. Of course General Washington on his way 
to the Battle of Brandywir.e, moved down the York Rood from his encamp­
ment at Little Neshaminy in Bucks County. 

Today, with none of its original scenic beauty marred, Wyncote is one 
of the most popular suburban sections of Montgomery County. 

DOROTHY BEAUTY SHOP 
Opposite Station 

ELKINS PARK 
Melrose 4292 
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F. LYl\'.tAN HOOVER 
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION 

Glenslde, Pa. 
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GLENSIDE HARDWARE 

Easton Rd. and Wesley Ave. 

OGONTZ 2128 

COMPLIMENTS OF 

SCHILLING'S BAKERY 
200 RYERS AVE. 

Ch<.'Henham, Pa. 

COMPLIMENTS OF 

HERMAN SOLOMON 
HARRY REICH 

CLOVERCREST DAIRIES 

COMPLIMEN'l'S 

OF 

J. HOWARD ADAIR 

COMPLIMENTS OF 

CENTRAL GARAGE 
Ashbourne Rd. & Central Ave. 

Church Rd. & Cottman St. 

WM. T. MULDREW 
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL 

ENGINEER 

JENKINTOWN, PA. 

COMPLJM£NTS OF 

FARBER'S DRUG STORE 

ELKJNS PARK 

FOR BE'M'ER FOOD 

ASHBOURNE MARKET 
High School Rd. and Park Ave. 

Elkins Park 
Phones-Maj. 1289 Mel. 1442 

We Deliver 
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OGONTZ 4060 

GLENSIDE GARAGE 
Sales WILLYS Service 
137 E. GLENSIDE AVE. 

Glenslde, Pa. 
S. R. Moser C. E. Goldsmith 

Greeting Gards Gifts 

GIFT CRAFT SHOPPE 
104 SO. EASTON ROAD 

Glem:lde, Pa. 

Betty Plunkett 

Free Crank Case Service Tires & Tubes 

W. HAROLD WEISS 
Keswick and Paxson Avenues 

AUTOMOTIVE SUPPLIES 
ELECTRIC VULCANIZING 
Gasoline, Olis and Greases 

Battery Service Ogontz 52J3 

Phone, Ogontz 4944 

GLENSIDE TAILORS 
Roberts Block at R. R. Station 

CLEANING-PRESSJNG-DYEING 
Suits and Coats Made to Order 

V. Franceschini J. A. Ciocca 

COMPLIMENTS 

OF 

WNI'ZEL & SON 

FRANK W. CARMAN 
BUILDER 

439 Leedom St., Jenkintown, Pa. 
Phone Og. 1841 

FREE PARKING 

OGONTZ DINER 
YORK & CHURCH RD. 

ELKINS F'ARK, PA. 

Open 24 Hrs. Lou Trols, Mgr. 

GLENSIDE TOGGERY 
MEN'S AND D<)Y'S WEAR 

118 S. F.aston Rd., Glenside 
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By WILLIAM McCANN 

The part of Glenside in Cheltenham Township was begun as a rail­
road station of the old North Penna. Rallroad in 1857, now a part of the 
Philo. and Reading system. The hamlet of Harmer Hill over at Limekiln 
Pike and Church Road was a goodly settlement many years before that 
time. While there are hardly as many houses now as there wore in that 
section in 1857 owing to W. W. Harrison purchasing several of them and 
tearing them down, there · was a general store on the triangle of what is 
now Easton Road and the Limekiln Pike and for many years it housed the 
post office known as the Waverly Heights P. 0., that name being the name 
of the section of Glenside at Waverly Road and Limekiln Pike. There was 
also a saddler shop, a shoemaker shop, the Methodist Church built in 1852 
and the publiC" school alongside of it. These were on Church Road between 
500 and 600 feet west of Limekiln Pike and the physician who brought the 
writer into the world In 1860 lived next door to the Church, so you can see 
that this wus a nice little community of itself. Then the section on Waverly 
Road, west of Limekiln Pike, was taken up by a number of Hebrews who 
had made money during the Civil War and they built stately mansions for 
that period and had a nice little synagc1ue which I have heen in since it 
was transformed into a private house. The old name of Harmer H1ll came 
from the family of Harmers who had farms In that section. There is an 
historical document in the Montgomery County Historical Society at Norris­
town which states Wm. Perm granted a thousand acres of ground to one 
of four brothers named Harmer. It reached across Cheltenham Township 
from about Jenkintown Station across Church Road toward Mt. Airy. One 
brother received a grant In New Jersey, one In Virginia and one in Ohio. 
I am sorry to lose the name of Harmer from the vicinity as the ones I 
knew were fine men. Henry had a carriage builder's shop in Flourtown; 
David was also a carriage . builder in old Weldon. now part of Glenslde 
in Abington Township, and John was the wheelwright at the same place. 
He was also the Treasurer of Abington Township for a t£rrn. 

The old name of Glenslde was Abington Station and it was not until 
a post office was wanted here that it was changed. This was April 1, 1885. 
The original name of the station was Tacony as it was near the Tacony 
Creek and while it is nearer Jenkintown Station, there was no Jenkintown 
Station at U1fs time, 1857, and we have now in our possession a copy of 
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,J. HEITZMAN 
TAXI • LIOHT HAULING 

Majestic 2105 - Melrose 4775 
ELKINS PARK, PA. 

KAUTZ'S TA VERN 
ANTON KAUTZ, Proprietor 

Beer Direct from Keg 
Wines - Liquors • Home CooklnR 

1004 E. COTTMAN STREET 
Burholme PIL,trlm 4153 

Birkenhier's Tavern 
7 HUNTINGDON PIKE 

Rockled,ic 

Beer - Wines - Liquor 

The Cheltenham Council or 
Republican Women 

President-Mary J. Wheatley 
Vice Pres.-Helene Marie Hibbs 
Secretary-Ellen C. KoenlR 
Treasurer-Emma A. Reedy 
Publicity-Mary I. Hingston 

MEMBERSHIP OPEN 

COMPLJMENTS OF 

CHAS. D. CONKLIN 

Phone: Cheltenham 2631 
Cabinet Maker Alterations - Jobbln,c 

HUGH MATHIESON 
CARPENTER & BUILDER 

3 ELM AVENUE 
Cheltenham, 1'8. 

Paula's Beauty Parlor 
8045 YORK ROAD 

ELKINS PARK 
Permanent WavlnJ( 
Phone Mel. 1919 

OGONTZ 125 

M 01 TZ 
FRENCH DRY CLEANERS 

718 West Ave. Jenkintown, Pa. 
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Glenslde Wholesale Co. 
Formerly FrledberR Bros. Co. 

Wholesale Tobacco & Candy 
Cigarette VendlnR Machines 

GLENSIDE, PA. 

MAX KARP 
CLEANERS 

All Work Done on the Premises 
120 S. Easton Rd., Glenslde 

Ogontz 1658 

BOEHN'S 
CONFECTIONERY 

Keswick Ave. and Glenside Ave. 

WOODLAND BAKERY 
BREAD - CAKES & PIES 

AuRUSt Drach, Prop. 
110 Lincoln Ave., Cheltenham 

Weldon Auto Supply Co. 
Auto Replacement Parts 
Machine Shop Service 

EASTON AND JENKINTOWN RDS. 
Olenslde, Pa. 

Fountain Sel'vlce 
Our Own Make Ice Cream 

HAHN'S BAKERIES 
The place for Quality, Quantity 

& Service 
6612 Rising Sun Avenue - PH. 1648 

7965 Oxford Avenue - PIJ. 7822 

For Tailoring and CleanlOR of 
The Belter Klnd 

Cheltenham 2711 or PIIMlm 7000 
CHELTENHAM CLEANERS & DYERS 

We Do Our Own Cleaning 
Tailors •· Funlers 

504·06 CEN'fflAL A VE. 
S. Edelstein, Prop. 

LEWIS STORE 
107 Central Ave., Cheltenham, Pa. 

A New Collar Improvement that will 
reduce your shirt BudRet. Buy Airman 
Llfe•lnsured, Collar Guaranteed to out­
wear the shirt. Moderately Priced at 
Sl.55, 2 for $3.00. All sizes and sleeve 
lel\Rths. 
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a chart showing all the stations of the old road from Master Strnet station, 
Philo. to Gwynedd, at this time the terminus of the road, the data of which 
will be found in the Bulletin being published this October for the Ole, York 
Road Historical Society, the same being furnished from the records of the 
North F-enn given to it in a lecture by the Readinq's secretary, Jay V. Bare. 

The name Tacony- did not last long for Mr. Comly who had the coal 
and lumber yard here at the time told me personally that one evening a 
lady got off the only evening train here thinking she was arriving at Tacony 
en the Delaware, so Mr. Comly got out his horse and bug~y, drove her 
over there, t1"~n wrote the Company about the occurrence and they changed 
the name to Abington as the station was at the line of Abington Township. 
Mt. Carmely Avenue was known as the Township Line then. 

Rice's Mill Road which is the lower end of-Glenside was laid out in 1751 
and it was over this road that lime was taken to Philo. to use in the building 
of the old State House. 

My great uncle, George Blackard McCann, bought 6 acres of ground 
and a log house on it at the comer of it and Church Road in 1844 for $400.00 
and it is now part of the Gr,'lbell Estate. The Limekiln Pike is believed to 
have been laid out in 1711 and up on the gable end of the old Eagle Hotel, 
Edge Hill, is a stone with that date cut in it and there is some_ old houses 
there yet from Revolutionary times. Some that we knew in. our youth 
have been tom down. 

Edge Hill Village was so named in I 838. Previous to that it was known 
as Guineatown as a family of Guinea Negroen had settled there. One 
named Montier married the negro maid of General Murray who was of the 
American Army and owned some 600 acres adjoining the present Edge 
Hill Village. 

General Murray, when he died, had left her 100 acres of it which took 
in part of Edge Hlll in Cheltenham Township and some of it in Abingtou 
Township. For years there was great difficulty in getting proper title to 
any of this ground. In this town a Jog house was built in 1768 by one 
\Vllliam Bradfield. A ~tone house was built right on the Pike opposite to 
where the Willow Grove Road opens on it by one Abner Bradfield, brother 
of William, for his granddaughter when she married a John Shaffer. This 
was known in my youth as the Isaac Shaffer home. Both of these places 
have been razed. One old farm house still standing is known as the Heist 
place. David Heist took possession of it in 1846 but It had been built some 
time before that. When I was a boy I went there to buy 2 cents worth of 
yeast for my mother. Mrs. Heist was the noted yeast maker of the com­
munity in those early days. We got our flour and corn meal from the old 
grist mill of Daniel Sill who operated it until the. late eighties. It was 
founded by an Issac Knight about 1725, Farmers brought their whea! and 
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PATRONS AND PATRONESSES 

Abrams, Henry R. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7845 Montgomery Avenue, Elkins Park 
Alexander, Blanche S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1204 Stratford Avenue, Melrose Park 
Gould, W .......................................... 444 N. 19th St., Philo. 
Bailey, Lawrence H ...................... 205 Fembrook Avenue, Wyncote 
Barnes, Raymond J .............................. 104 Hewitt Rd., Wyncote 
Barney, Mr. Charles D ....................... 7908 York Road, Elkins Park 
Basler, Lawrence A ............................ Brooke Road, North Hills 
Batt, W. L ......................... Rices Mill Rd. & Wyncote Ln., Wyncote 
Bmswanger, Frank G ......................... 530 Elkins Ave., Elkins Park 
Blumenthal, Mr. Abraham . . . . ....... 1125 Stratford Avenue, Melrose Park 
Bond, C. Carter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 321 Ashbourne Rd., Elkins Park 
Bond, Charles ...................... 319 Ashbourne Rd., Elkins Park, Philo. 
Breuninger, Edward . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 416 Chapel Road, Melrose Park 
Burlap, Miss Anna M. . . . . . . . . . . . . Ashbourne & Hopeland Ave., Elkins Park 
Burlap, Mr. Martin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Ashbourne & Hopeland Rds., Elkins Park 
Byron, Robert J ......................... 325 Harrison Avenue, Elkins Park 
Class, Adolph ...................... Church Rd. & Accomac Rd., Wyncote 
Cole, Dr. Charles J., ........................ 7926 Park Avenue, Elkins Park 
Conklin, Charles D ....................... 207 Central Avenue, Cheltenham 
Corson, Philip L. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Plymouth Meeting 
Daily, M. Lawrence ........................ 1228 Vine Street, Philadelphia 
Dallas, John H. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..... 8331 High School Rd., Elkins Park 
Dickay, Charles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Willow Grove Avenue, Laverock 
Dixon, Mrs. Eleanor Widener ...... Spring Ave. & Serpentine Ln., Elkins Park 
Doan, Ruth B. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8340 High School Road, Elkins Park 
Dugan, John L ..................... 8355 Cadwallader Avenue, Elkins Park 
Ederer, Clarence L. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 Surrey Rd., Melrose Park 
Erny & Nolan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Bouvier & Cheltenham Ave., Philo. 
Erlan Improvement Association .................... 1829 Erlen Rd., La Mott 
Feeney, Robert G ................... 7850 Montgomery Avenue, Elkins Park 
Felten, Albert L .......................... 7209 Oak Avenue, Melrose Park 
Folsom, Maude ............................. 444 Valley Rd., Melrose Park 
Foster, Major B ............................. Rowland Avenue, Cheltenham 
Frank, August C. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 328 Harrison Avenue, Elkins Park 
Gerbron, Ralph W., Company ................. 6263 Oxford Avenue, Philcr. 
Gerstley, Samuel L .......................... Windsor Ave., Melrose Park 
Glinz, Edward E. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Elkins Park 
Goff, Mr. David D. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Elkins Court, Elkins Park 
Gross, Mr. Samuel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 537 E. Church Rd., Elkins Park 
Haas, F. J ............................. 631 Chelten Hills Drive, Elkins Park 
Haas, Mr. Leonard ................. 7915 Montgomery Avenue, Elkins Park 
Hana, David A ........................ 116 Windsor Avenue, Melrose Park 
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com to be ground, often on the back of horses and taken away the same 
way. We still remember the old White Wagon that delivered the flour in 
the 60's, in fact it was Dan Rice's wagon that moved my parents from Mill 
Road to Mt. Carmel Ave. in the Spring of 1864. We still remember the two 
companies of soldiers from the Civil War that went from Hatboro and 
Doylestown, marched over the old plank Road (now the Easton Road) re­
turning, what was left of them, to their home towns. So Glenside had patriotic 
demonstrations many years ago. Some six or seven thousand marched 
down Church Road from the camps in the vicinity of Fort Washington to 
Limekiln Pike to Washington Lane and to Germantown during the Revolu­
tionary War. 

The part of the present Glenside which takes in Lismore and Harrison 
Avenues was started to develop by M. L. Kohler over fifty years ago, The 
store properties on Easton Road being a later development. However, a 
Hotel, or rather a tavern, was built on it in the Grove, c1s it was then, at the 
comer of Mt. Carmel Ave. It was known as Liberty Grove and in summer 
time was used for picnics from Philadelphia. It hLid old fashioned high 
rope swings and a dance floor. The man who built and ran the place was 
a Captain of the Civil War named Robert Harper. There were several of 
the Harper family located at the comer of Church Road and Limekiln Pike 
for many years. Other old families were the Fishers, Tulls, Sines, Farris's 
and the Bickleys. 
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PATRONS AND PATRONESSES 
Hagan, Mr. Peter P. . . . . . ......... 1103 Prospect Avenue, Oak Lane, Philo. 
Hagerman, Mrs. Sallie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 524 Spring Avenue, Elkins Park 
Harrison, Charles E. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7703 Woodlawn Avenue, Elkins Park 
Hartmann, John B. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Frankford Trust Co., Philo. 
Haven, Margaret L. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Elkins Park 
Heimerdinger, Leo H. . . . ....................... Valley Rd., Melrose Park 
Harkness, Wayne ........................ 824 Home Stead Rd., Jenkintown 
Herzberg, Isabel M. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7945 Park Avenue, Elkins Park 
Hesselbacher, George E .................... 8200 Fairview Rd., Elkins Park 
High, Samuel H. . .......................... 40 East Airy Street, Norristown 
Hirsch, Louis A ............................ 520 Elkins Avenue, Elkins Park 
Jaaperson, Frederick . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7800 Woodlawn Avenue, Melrose Park 
Jones, Joseph L., 3rd . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1523 North 26th Street, Philo. 
Kahn, Charles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1009 Sharpless Rd., Melrose Park 
Kaufmann, Mr. John J .................... 8210 High School Rd., Elkins Park 
Kaufmann, Mrs. M. A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7910 Whitewood Rd., Elkins Park 
Kehr, Wesley Harris ...................... 8104 Brookside Rd., Elkins Park 
Kelley, Mr. Richard C ......................... 8212 Cedar Rd., Elkins Park 
Klein, M. H. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8206 Marlon Rd., Elkins Park 
Kohn, Max ............................... 613 Elkins Avenue, Elkins Park 
Krauss, George . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8019 Hillcrest A venue, Elkins Park 
Krauss, Jacob L. . . . . . . . . . . ............ 8110 Cadwallader Rd., Elkins Park 
Lacey, Mr. James M .............. Marlborough-Blenheim, Atlantic City, N. J. 
Lacey, Mrs. James M ............ Marlborough-Blenheim, Atlantic City, N. J. 
Latham Park Improvement Ass'n . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Latham Park, Pa. 
Laubach, Mrs. Lillie C ......................... 1010 Valley Rd., Oak Lane 
Leopold, Chas. S ............................. 7600 West Ave., Elkins Park 
Lewis, Andrew L. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Norristown, Pa. 
Lewis, Mr. & Mrs. Davis L. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8309 York Road, Elkins Park 
Linson, Edwin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 108 Surrey Rd., Melrose Park 
Maclean, Mr. and Mrs. Frederick ...... Elkins Court Apartments, Elkins Park 
Marshall, Jo:m ............................................... Elkins Park 
Mattox, W. Guemay ............................... Glen Rd., Elkins Park 
McCormick, Mr. J. J .......................... 1719 Chelsea Rd., Oak Lane· 
McCrelght, Robert Jr ................ 7940 Montgomery Avenue, Elkins Park 
McElgin, Marian F ............................... 814 Pitt Rd., Cheltenham 
Merkle, Edward . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 120 Meade Rd., Elkins Park 
Meyers, Mllton M. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . High School & Sterling Rds., Elkins Park 
Morgan, Ralph ............................................ Wyncote, Pu. 
Myers, Mr. Allen . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8224 Manor Rd., Elkins Park 
Myers, Mrs. Edith H. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 710 Spring Avenue, Elkins Park 
Myers, Ralph E. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 508 Crest Ave., Melrose Park 
Newburger, Frank L. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Elkins Park 
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PATRONS AND PATRONESSES 

O'Hare, Mr. and Mrs. John J ...................... Asbury Ave., Oak Lane 
Pieri~:-. George, Jr ............................. Spring Avenue, Elkins Park 
Pike, Harold C. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8207 Marion Rd., Elkins Park 
Pye, Mr. William M. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1113 Stratford Ave., Oak Lane, Philo. 
Rabiger, Mr. Harry . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 535 Church Rd., £1idns Park 
Reilly, Clarence F. B ................ 1011 Stratford Avenue, Oak Lane, Philo. 
Reiner, Edwin M. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1202 Stratford A venue, Elkins Park 
Renninger, Charles P. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1311 Sansom St., Philo. 
Rieff, J. E. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c/o Bell Telephone Co., Jenkintown 
Rosenau, Mr. Fred J ...................... 7900 Whitewood Rd., Elkins Park 
Rosenau, Mr. G. E ............................. 336 V-/arlng Rd., Elkins Park 
Rosenbaum, Robert . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8105 Broo:(slde Rd., Elkins Park 
Rosskam, Walter M ........................... 7825 Park Ave., Elkins Park 
Rowland, Mr. Edwin S., Jr. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Rowland A venue, Cheltenham 
Rowland, Mr. Lynford, Jr .................. Foulkrod & Northwood Sts., Philo. 
Rowland, Mrs. Mary B ..................... Rowland Avenue, Cheltenham 
Sc,midt, Charles E. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7837 York Rd., Phfla. 
Schubert, Carl ............................ 7612 West Avenue, Elkins Park 
Scullin, Simon, Patrick, Edward . . . . . . . . . . . Cambria & American Sts., Philo. 
Sheffler, Mr. M ............................... 419 Chapel Rd., Elkins Park 
Shuster, George F. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 503 Shoemaker Rd., Elkins Park 
Smith, Arthur . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Lynnewood Farm, Elkins Park 
Silmore, Mr. Irvin M ...................... 512 Shcemaker Rd., Elkins Park 
Sttlz, Mr. Louis A ......................... 407 Myrtle Avenue, Cheltenham 
Strouse, Arthur A ........................... 414 S. Sterling Rd., Elkins Park 
SulJivan, Marshall P .......................... 8134 Cedar Rd., Elkins Park 
Taylor, Francis R. ........................ 525 Ryers Avenue, Oieltenham 
Taylor, John C. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 1101 Stratford Avenue, Elkins Park 
Taylor, Mr. D. R. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Cedar Rd., Elkins Park 
T1..1ylor, Mr. Herbert K. ........................ 8211 Cedar Rd., Elkins Park 
Tees, Annetta K. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 106 Old Soldiers Rd., Oieltenham 
Thompson, Harrison L. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7211 Oar. A venue, Melrose Park 
Unruh, Edward . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 409 Valley Rd., Melrose Park 
Veit, Herman ............................ 7600 New Second St., Oak Lane 
Wagner, J. Ernst ............................... 501 Valley Rd., Oak Lane 
Waxman, A. . ........... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 404 W arlng Rd., Elkins Park 
Webber, John ............................ 529 Shoemaker Rd .. Elklnt: Park 
Wessel, Henry, Jr ........................... 7930 Pctrk Avenue, Elkins Park 
Wessel, Herman M. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7205 Oak A venue, Oak Lane 
Widener, Joseph E. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Linwood Hall, Elkins Park 
W1111ams, Mr. Lewis N. D ............... 681 Meetinghouse Rd., Elkins Park 
Yeo, George .................................... 11 North 13th St., Philo. 

Printed by Blaetz Brothers, Inc. 



NO SUBSTITUTE 
Modern science has not so far been able to develop 

a really satisfactory substitute for the "old fashioned" 

bank book. 

New inventions multiply faster than they can be 

catalogued. Almost every day we hear of a new sub­

stance or alloy that has been developed that will re­

place others. 

For the av~ragc man or woman sa\'ing is still 

the best and surest way of getting a financial start in 

the world. Your bank book will do the work if you 

handle it the right way. 

'·"~. '\. -~-- .. ~,,,..., 
. , ,, ... 

·40., .. 

JENKINTOWN BANI AND TRUST Co■PANY 
MEMBER 

Fe,leral Depodl lna,ircuacc Corp, l'etleral Reacrve Bank 



The Cheltenham National Bank 
CHELTENHAM, PENNSYLVANIA 

OFFICERS 
FRANCIS R. TAYLOR, Pre,ident 

ERNEST RIEBEN, J'lce Pre,idenl 

HAROW S. ASHWORTH, Ca,hler 

J. HOW ARD FRIES, ..4,,/,tanl Ca,hler 

DIRECTORS 
Allred T. Farrell Chas. R. Krewson, Jr. 

John G. Gartmeler Runell O. Harrar 

Emest Rieben Jamee Bouldin 

George Bergmann Harold S. Aehworth 

Francis R. Taylor John C. Jardel 

Frank l\l. l\looney 

ltlember Federal Depoail Insurance Corpl'mllon 

Fe,leral Reaen,e Syalena 




